

Forest Act

LOG SALVAGE REGULATION FOR THE VANCOUVER LOG SALVAGE DISTRICT B.C. Reg. 220/81

Filed May 29, 1981 and effective August 1, 1981 Last amended March 30, 2022 by B.C. Reg. 76/2022

Consolidated Regulations of British Columbia

This is an unofficial consolidation.

B.C. Reg. 220/81 (O.C. 1287/81), deposited May 29, 1981 and effective August 1, 1981, is made under the *Forest Act*, R.S.B.C. 1996, c. 157, ss. 123, 124, 125 and 151 (2) (c).

This is an unofficial consolidation provided for convenience only. This is not a copy prepared for the purposes of the *Evidence Act*.

This consolidation includes any amendments deposited and in force as of the currency date at the bottom of each page. See the end of this regulation for any amendments deposited but not in force as of the currency date. Any amendments deposited after the currency date are listed in the B.C. Regulations Bulletins. All amendments to this regulation are listed in the *Index of B.C. Regulations*. Regulations Bulletins and the Index are available online at www.bclaws.ca.

See the User Guide for more information about the *Consolidated Regulations of British Columbia*. The User Guide and the *Consolidated Regulations of British Columbia* are available online at www.bclaws.ca.

Prepared by: Office of Legislative Counsel Ministry of Attorney General Victoria, B.C.

Forest Act

LOG SALVAGE REGULATION FOR THE VANCOUVER LOG SALVAGE DISTRICT

B.C. Reg. 220/81

Contents

- 1 Interpretation
- 2 Application
- 3 Qualifications for licence
- 4 Qualifications for a log salvage permit
- 5 Rights of property in an identifiable log
- 6 Owner of identifiable log
- 7 Disposal and delivery of salvaged logs
- 8 Scaling of salvaged logs
- 9 Duties of licensee
- 10 Compensation for disposal of salvaged logs
- 11 Proceeds from disposition of logs
- 12 Salvaging of logs, permit required
- 13 Delivery of salvaged logs
- 14 Prohibited salvaging
- 15 Equipment and assistance
- 16 Log identification hammers
- 17 Removal from water
- 18 Daylight hours
- 19 Seizure
- 20 Licence and permit fees
- 21 Offence

Interpretation

- 1 (1) In this regulation:
 - "accounting period" means the period commencing on January 1 and ending on June 30 or the period commencing on July 1 and ending on December 31 of any year;
 - "Act" means the Forest Act;
 - "deadhead" means a log that floats with at least 3/4 of its length totally submerged, or has the entire diameter of one end out of the water;
 - "former owner" in reference to an identifiable salvaged log means a person who was the owner of the log prior to title passing to the licensee;
 - "helper" means a person who helps a permittee salvage logs;
 - "identifiable log" means a salvaged log that
 - (a) bears a timber mark or a registered marine log brand, or
 - (b) does not bear a timber mark or a registered marine log brand but is salvaged in a boom, section, bundle or parcel that

- (i) has at least one log that bears a timber mark or a registered marine log brand, or
- (ii) bears an ownership tag;
- "licence" means a receiving station licence;
- "licensee" means the holder of a licence:
- "log" means any log, bolt, pole, pile, boomstick, swifter, tree or other unmanufactured wood product;
- "log boom" means logs stowed in an orderly manner, contained by boomsticks, swiftered and ridered, and includes a bundle or parcel of logs and a string of 2 or more boomsticks;

"log salvage" means

- (a) securing, pursuing or searching for drift timber, or
- (b) for drift timber that has been secured, possession of the timber until it is returned to its owner or it is delivered to a receiving station of a licensee;
- "log salvage district" means the Vancouver Log Salvage District established under section 122 of the Act;
- "marine log brand" means a marine log brand registered under Part 5 of the Act;
- "merchantable log" means a marketable salvaged log;
- "ownership tag" means an identifiable mark of ownership other than a registered marine log brand or timber mark;
- "permit" means a log salvage permit;
- "permittee" means the holder of a permit;
- "person" includes a cooperative association;
- "scale and royalty invoice" means the invoice submitted by the ministry of the minister responsible for the Act setting out the Crown charges payable and the volume scaled;
- "sorted and boomed" in relation to salvaged logs means
 - (a) sorted for sale,
 - (b) stowed in an orderly fashion, and
 - (c) contained and secured by boomsticks and swifters in a manner that permits the safe towing of the salvaged logs to their destination;
- "timber mark" means a timber mark registered under Part 5 of the Act.
- (2) For the purposes of the Act and regulations under the Act including this regulation, "salvaged logs" means logs, whether in a log boom or not, that have been found abandoned and
 - (a) adrift.
 - (b) cast ashore, or

VANCOUVER LOG SALVAGE DISTRICT

(c) lying on or embedded in the bed or bottom, or on the bank or beach, of a river, stream, lake or ocean

in the log salvage district and have been then taken into custody, without the owner's authorization, by a person other than the owner of the logs.

[am. B.C. Regs. 299/81, s. 1; 109/93, s. 1; 90/2006, s. 1.]

Application

2 This regulation applies only to salvaged logs.

Qualifications for licence

- The minister may grant a licence to a person who has not held a licence that was cancelled under the Act and
 - (a) is neither engaged in nor the holder of an interest in a business that manufactures timber or any forest product in British Columbia, or
 - (b) is a company or cooperative, as the case may be, that has no shareholder that both
 - (i) owns more than 10% of the shares of the company or the cooperative,
 - (ii) is a company that is engaged in or has an interest in a business that manufactures timber or any forest product in British Columbia.

[en. B.C. Reg. 90/2006, s. 2.]

Qualifications for a log salvage permit

- (1) Subject to subsections (2) and (3), the minister may grant a permit to a person who
 - (a) Repealed. [B.C. Reg. 90/2006, s. 3 (a).]
 - (b) is a Canadian citizen or landed immigrant,
 - (c) has not been found guilty of an offence under
 - (i) section 339 of the *Criminal Code*, or
 - (ii) section 334, 343 or 463 of the Criminal Code by reason of a theft set out in section 322 of the Criminal Code,
 - (d) is 18 years or over,
 - (e) has not had a permit that was cancelled under the Act during the period commencing 5 years prior to the person's application,
 - (f) is neither engaged in nor the holder of an interest in a business that manufactures timber or any forest product in British Columbia,
 - (g) has paid all fines imposed against the person under the Act or regulations under the Act, and
 - (h) has not been found guilty of an offence under the Act or regulations under the Act within the preceding 6 months.

- (2) If the minister is of the opinion that a person found guilty of an offence mentioned in subsection (1) is of good character and otherwise meets the requirements of subsection (1), the minister may grant a permit to the person
 - (a) in the case of an offence mentioned in subsection (1) (c), if 5 or more years have passed since the last conviction for such an offence, and
 - (b) in the case of an offence mentioned under subsection (1) (h), on application for the permit.
- (3) The minister may grant a permit to a person who is not a Canadian citizen or landed immigrant where that person held a permit on January 1, 1980 or on January 1, 1981 and otherwise meets the requirements of subsection (1).

[am. B.C. Regs. 299/81, s. 2; 184/89; 109/93, s. 2; 90/2006, s. 3; 133/2011, Sch. s. 18; 76/2022, s. 7.]

Rights of property in an identifiable log

- 5 (1) Where a permittee
 - (a) delivers an identifiable log to a receiving station of a licensee, or
 - (b) notifies a licensee that the permittee has an identifiable log at a location other than a receiving station,

the licensee shall hold the log as a gratuitous bailee for a period of 3 working days commencing on the working day following the delivery or the notification, as the case may be.

- (2) When the permittee delivers a log to a receiving station or notifies a licensee as set out in subsection (1), the licensee shall notify the owner of the identifiable log.
- (3) A permittee must notify the licensee or the owner of an identifiable log within 3 days of the log coming into the possession of the permittee and must immediately
 - (a) deliver the log to a receiving station of a licensee, or
 - (b) notify a licensee that the permittee has an identifiable log at a location other than a receiving station.
- (3.1) Subsection (2) continues to apply to a licensee where a permittee notifies an owner under subsection (3).
 - (4) For the purposes of subsections (5) and (6) the remuneration payable in respect of an identifiable log by the owner of the log to the permittee who salvaged it shall be in an amount based on the time taken, effort expended and normal expenses incurred by the permittee in salvaging the log and delivering it to the owner.
 - (5) Subject to subsection (8), where the owner of an identifiable log claims possession of it either during the period referred to in subsection (1) or afterwards but before the sale of the log, and the owner and the permittee who salvaged the

LOG SALVAGE REGULATION FOR THE VANCOUVER LOG SALVAGE DISTRICT

> log agree as to the amount of remuneration payable in respect of the log by the owner to the permittee, then upon

- (a) the owner paying the permittee that amount, or
- (b) the owner and the permittee agreeing as to payment later of that amount the licensee or the permittee, as the case may be, shall forthwith deliver the log to the owner.
- (6) Subject to subsection (8), where the owner of an identifiable log claims possession of it either during the period referred to in subsection (1) or afterwards but before the sale of the log, but the owner and the permittee who salvaged the log disagree as to the amount of remuneration payable in respect of the log by the owner to the permittee, then
 - (a) if the owner and the permittee agree to submit that issue to arbitration under the Commercial Arbitration Act, the permittee or the licensee, as the case may be, shall forthwith deliver the log to the owner,
 - (b) if the owner, but not the permittee, indicates the owner is willing to so submit that issue, the log shall be delivered to the owner on payment by the owner to the permittee of remuneration in the amount the owner considers due to the permittee on the basis set out in subsection (4), and in that event a right is reserved to the permittee to challenge the amount of the remuneration in a court of law, or
 - (c) if the permittee, but not the owner, indicates the permittee is willing to so submit that issue, or if both are unwilling to so submit that issue, the log shall not be delivered to the owner, but shall be treated in the same manner as a log not claimed by an owner.
- (7) Subject to subsections (5), (6) and (8), after the expiration of the period referred to in subsection (1), the licensee shall be deemed to be the owner of the log, and after the log has been scaled the licensee shall dispose of the log at the highest price reasonably obtainable.
- (8) Where the licensee has notice of a dispute over the ownership of an identifiable log the licensee shall hold the log as a gratuitous bailee until the licensee disposes of it, and the licensee shall not dispose of it
 - (a) until 3 months after the period of 3 working days referred to in subsection (1), if no court proceedings to determine the ownership commenced during those 3 months, or
 - (b) until the final determination or other disposition of court proceedings to determine the ownership, if any are commenced during the 3 months after the period of 3 working days referred to in subsection (1).

[am. B.C. Regs. 299/81, s. 3; 109/93, s. 3; 76/2022, ss. 6 and 8.]

Owner of identifiable log

- **6** (1) For the purposes of this regulation, "owner" in relation to an identifiable log shall be determined in accordance with this section.
 - (2) Where an identifiable log is salvaged other than in a section, boom, bundle or parcel, the owner is
 - (a) the holder of the registered marine log brand, or
 - (b) in the absence of a registered marine log brand, the holder of the certificate for the timber mark, if any, on the log.
 - (3) Where logs are salvaged in a section, boom, bundle or parcel that bears an ownership tag, the owner of the logs is the person identified by that ownership tag, whether or not any of the logs bears a timber mark or registered marine log brand.
 - (4) Where logs are salvaged in a section, boom, bundle or parcel that bears only one identifiable mark of ownership and that identifiable mark is a timber mark or registered marine log brand on one or more logs, then the owner of all the logs is,
 - (a) if the only identifiable mark is a timber mark, the holder of the certificate for that mark, or
 - (b) if the only identifiable mark is a registered marine log brand, the holder of that log brand.
 - (5) Where logs are salvaged in a section, boom, bundle or parcel that bears no ownership and there is
 - (a) more than one marine log brand on the logs,
 - (b) more than one timber mark on the logs, or
 - (c) both a marine log brand and timber mark on the logs,

the owner of a log that bears a registered marine log brand is the registered holder of that brand, and the owner of a log that bears a timber mark, but no marine log brand, is the holder of that timber mark.

- (6) Notwithstanding subsections (2) to (5), and subject to section 5 (8), where logs are salvaged in a section, boom, bundle or parcel that bears an ownership tag, the owner of all the logs in the section, boom, bundle or parcel is,
 - (a) where the person identified by the tag has not sold the logs prior to the expiration of the 3 working days referred to in section 5 (1), that person, or
 - (b) where the person identified by the tag has sold the logs prior to the expiration of the 3 working days referred to in section 5 (1), the person who in fact owns the logs at the beginning of that period.

[am. B.C. Reg. 299/81, s. 4.]

Disposal and delivery of salvaged logs

7 (1) Subject to this section and section 5, no person

LOG SALVAGE REGULATION FOR THE VANCOUVER LOG SALVAGE DISTRICT

- (a) other than a licensee shall dispose of a log salvaged from a log salvage district, and
- (b) other than a licensee or a person who is permitted by a licensee to accept delivery shall accept delivery of a log salvaged from the log salvage district.
- (2) On receipt of written authorization from a licensee, a permittee may dispose of, and any person may accept delivery of, a log inspected and specified by a licensee to be unmerchantable.
- (3) A licensee shall accept delivery of every merchantable log.
- (4) Where a licensee agrees to accept delivery of an unmerchantable log the licensee is required to pay the permittee who delivers it in the same manner as for a merchantable log.
- (5) Subject to section 5, the licensee shall dispose of a salvage log at the highest price reasonably obtainable.

[am. B.C. Regs. 109/93, s. 4; 76/2022, s. 6.]

Scaling of salvaged logs

- **8** (1) On delivery of a salvaged log to a receiving station of the licensee or to another location specified by the licensee the licensee shall cause the log to be scaled as soon as practicable.
 - (2) Where there is a dispute concerning the merchantability of a log, the grade determined by the scaler at the time of scale shall govern.
 - (3) Where there is a dispute concerning the presence of a timber mark or marine log brand, the identification by the scaler made at the time of scaling shall govern.

Duties of licensee

- **9** (1) A licensee shall
 - (a) maintain a receiving station in Howe Sound and the additional facilities necessary to provide an orderly system for dealing with salvaged logs, and
 - (b) keep the receiving station in Howe Sound and the other facilities open, at least on the days and for the periods specified from time to time by the minister in notices to the licensee, unless the licensee is prevented from doing so by circumstances beyond its reasonable control.
 - (2) If a permittee delivers to a receiving station of the licensee, or to a mill designated by the licensee under subsection (2.1), merchantable salvaged logs, or unmerchantable salvaged logs that the licensee accepts, the licensee must record the number of salvaged logs delivered and the date and time of delivery and, at the permittee's request, issue a receipt for the logs.
 - (2.1) The permittee must obtain written authorization from the licensee before delivery of the logs to a mill and may only deliver the logs to a mill specified in the authorization.

- (2.2) An authorization under subsection (2.1) must record the number of logs and deadheads determined under section 10 (1) (a) to be delivered and, on delivery, the owner of the mill or the owner's agent, must confirm these numbers and record the time and date of the delivery.
 - (3) Where the owner or the owner's agent records the information referred to in subsection (2) the owner or the owner's agent shall supply a record of the information to the licensee.
 - (4) The licensee shall maintain the records referred to in subsection (2) and have them available for inspection by the minister or a forest officer, as specified in the licence.
 - (5) The licensee shall not employ any person who is disqualified under section 4 (1) (c) or (d) from obtaining a log salvage permit.

[am. B.C. Regs. 299/81, s. 5; 109/93, s. 5; 133/2011, Sch. s. 19; 237/2013, App. 1, s. 1; 76/2022, s. 6.]

Compensation for disposal of salvaged logs

- 10 (1) Subject to section 5 and this section, if a licensee accepts delivery of a merchantable log at a receiving station, or at the place of delivery to a purchaser, the licensee must pay to a permittee
 - (a) if the log is a deadhead, as determined by the licensee, 95% of its value, or
 - (b) if the log is not a deadhead as determined by the licensee,
 - (i) 40% of the value of a log graded as grade code B, D, E, F or G,
 - (ii) 50% of the value of a log graded as grade code C, H, K or L,
 - (iii) 65% of the value of a log graded as grade code I or M,
 - (iv) 80% of the value of a log graded grade code J, or
 - (v) 90% of the value of a log graded as grade code U, W, X or Y

and, for the purposes of this subsection, the grade of a log is the grade determined under the Scaling Regulation, B.C. Reg. 446/94, and the value of the log, exclusive of Crown charges, is the purchase price for the log at the plant of the purchaser or the place of delivery or, if delivery is to a receiving station, at the receiving station, free of Crown charges.

- (2) Where the licensee and the permittee agree that the licensee shall remove gear from a log or tow the log from the permittee's tie up point to a receiving ground of the licensee, the cost of removing the gear, towing the log or both, as the case may be, shall be deducted from the amount payable to the permittee under subsection (1).
- (3) Where the licensee accepts delivery of unsorted and unboomed salvage logs at a receiving station, the licensee may deduct from the amount payable to the permittee under subsection (1) a reasonable cost for sorting and booming the logs.

- (4) A licensee shall pay a permittee or the permittee's assigns
 - (a) for logs delivered to a receiving station not later than 30 days after the licensee receives the scale and royalty account for the logs that the licensee received from the permittee, or
 - (b) for logs delivered directly to a buyer, not later than 30 days after the agreement for sale,

but, where paragraph (a) applies and the licensee does not receive a scale and royalty account in respect of the logs within 30 days after the scale of the logs, then the licensee shall, within 45 days after the scale of the logs, make a reasonable advance payment to the permittee.

- (5) Subsection (1) does not apply to logs
 - (a) for which a permittee is found guilty of an offence under
 - (i) section 339 of the Criminal Code, or
 - (ii) section 334, 343 or 463 of the *Criminal Code* by reason of a theft set out in section 322 of the *Criminal Code*, or
 - (b) where the permittee salvages the logs in contravention of the Act, this regulation or the permittee's permit.
- (6) Where a licensee disposes of a parcel of logs originating from more than one permittee, the licensee shall calculate each permittee's return on the basis of the volumes and grades contributed by each permittee to the parcel.

[am. B.C. Regs. 299/81, s. 6; 109/93, ss. 6, 7; 90/2006, s. 4; 76/2022, ss. 6 and 7.]

Proceeds from disposition of logs

- 11 (1) The licensee shall hold money that it receives from a disposition of identifiable salvaged logs during an accounting period, after deduction of
 - (a) money paid or payable during the accounting period by the licensee to permittees in respect of the salvaged logs,
 - (b) costs incurred during the accounting period by the licensee for scaling and for Crown charges in respect of the salvaged logs, and
 - (c) reasonable costs for overhead and operating expenses of the licensee in respect of the salvaged logs,

in trust for the benefit of the former owners of the identifiable salvaged logs disposed of by the licensee during the accounting period.

(2) Within 120 days after an accounting period the licensee shall pay, from the money held in trust in respect of the accounting period to each former owner of identifiable salvaged logs disposed of by the licensee during the accounting period, an amount equal to the amount of money required to be held in trust by the licensee in respect of the accounting period, multiplied by the quotient that is obtained when

- (a) the volume of identifiable salvaged logs of the former owner that was disposed of by the licensee during the accounting period is divided by
- (b) the total volume of identifiable salvaged logs disposed of by the licensee during the accounting period.
- (3) The licensee shall hold in reserve money it receives during an accounting period from the disposition of unidentifiable salvaged logs after deduction of
 - (a) money paid or payable by the licensee to permittees in respect of the salvaged logs,
 - (b) costs incurred by the licensee for scaling and Crown charges in respect of the salvaged logs, and
 - (c) reasonable costs for overhead and other current operating expenses of the licensee in respect of the salvaged logs,

to be used

- (d) to provide working capital for operation of its facilities, and capital for expansion of its facilities,
- (e) to replace fixed assets, and
- (f) under the general direction of the deputy minister of the minister responsible for the Act, to finance or assist in financing programs for recovery and disposal of deadheads and unmerchantable timber, and for debris control,

but if any of the money so held by the licensee is surplus to those requirements, the licensee shall hold that surplus in trust, to be paid in the same manner and in the same proportions to the same persons as the money the licensee received during that accounting period in respect of the disposition of identifiable salvaged logs.

[am. B.C. Regs. 299/81, s. 7; 90/2006, s. 5.]

Salvaging of logs, permit required

- 12 (1) Subject to this section and section 126 of the Act, no person other than a permittee or a helper may
 - (a) salvage a log in the log salvage district, or
 - (b) possess in the log salvage district a log that has been salvaged either inside or outside the log salvage district.
 - (2) Subsection (1) (b) does not apply to
 - (a) a licensee,
 - (b) a person who is towing the log under the direction of or with the permission of a licensee,
 - (c) a person who possesses a log that has been acquired from a licensee and has not become a salvaged log since the acquisition, or

LOG SALVAGE REGULATION FOR THE VANCOUVER LOG SALVAGE DISTRICT

- (d) a person who possesses a log salvaged outside the log salvage district, and who is delivering the log
 - (i) to a receiving station, or
 - (ii) to another location and
 - (A) the log has been scaled before entering the log salvage district, or
 - (B) the person possessing the log has in the person's possession a document issued by the minister authorizing the person to take the log to a place within the log salvage district for scaling.
- (3) At all times while carrying out log salvage operations in the log salvage district a permittee shall keep the permittee's permit on the permittee's person or on the salvage boat the permittee uses in the operations.
- (4) At the request of a forest officer or a peace officer a permittee shall
 - (a) produce the permittee's permit for inspection by the officer, and
 - (b) provide proof of the permittee's identity.
- (5) A person, other than the permittee named in a permit, who is salvaging logs and in possession of the permit shall, on the demand of a forest officer or of a peace officer, surrender it to the officer.

[am. B.C. Regs. 237/2013, App. 1, s. 2; 76/2022, ss. 6 to 8.]

Delivery of salvaged logs

- 13 (1) Subject to subsections (2) to (4), where a permittee salvages a merchantable salvage log in a log salvage district the permittee shall,
 - (a) as soon as practicable, deliver the log to a receiving station operated by the licensee for the log salvage district or to another location specified by the licensee, or
 - (b) if delivery is not practicable within 30 days, notify the licensee of the permittee's possession of the log and deliver it to a location specified by the licensee.
 - (2) Where a permittee salvages a log boom in a log salvage district the permittee shall, within one full working day, notify the licensee for the log salvage district of the location of the boom and the permittee shall also
 - (a) keep it intact and not remove any logs from it,
 - (b) if it is open, use the permittee's best efforts to close it and to contain loose logs, and
 - (c) hold it in a safe place until the permittee receives instructions from its owner, from the licensee or from the minister.

- (3) Where a log boom is held by a permittee under subsection (2), the licensee or the owner shall take delivery of it at the safe place where the permittee is holding it, or a place reasonably close by.
- (4) Repealed. [B.C. Reg. 299/81, s. 8.]

[am. B.C. Regs. 299/81, s. 8; 237/2013, App. 1, s. 2; 76/2022, ss. 6 and 7.]

Prohibited salvaging

- **14** A permittee shall not salvage logs
 - (a) where the land is owned or leased by a person other than the Crown, from land or water covering land without the consent of the owner or lessee, as the case may be, or
 - (b) without the consent of the minister, from Crown land or water covering Crown land that is above the high high-water mark.

[am. B.C. Reg. 237/2013, App. 1, s. 2.]

Equipment and assistance

- 15 (1) Unless authorized in writing by the minister, a permittee, in carrying out log salvage operations,
 - (a) shall not operate more than
 - (i) one power salvage boat,
 - (ii) in the immediate vicinity of the power salvage boat, one tender boat which may be unpowered, or powered and which may not provide live aboard accommodation, and
 - (iii) 2 land vehicles to assist in removing logs lying on the foreshore,
 - (b) shall not have as a helper a person referred to in subsection (3), nor allow such a person aboard the salvage boat, and
 - (c) shall stay in the immediate vicinity of and directly supervise the permittee's helper, if any.
 - (2) A permittee shall display on every salvage boat, tender boat and land vehicle engaged in log salvage operations, centered plainly and prominently on both sides, the number of the permit under which the permittee is operating, preceded by the letters "LS" in bold solid characters
 - (a) at least 20 cm in height,
 - (b) the lines of which are at least 2.5 cm wide, and
 - (c) that are white on a black background, or vice versa,

and no other permit number shall be concurrently displayed.

- (3) No person may help a permittee salvage logs under subsection (1) where
 - (a) the permittee's permit is under suspension, or

LOG SALVAGE REGULATION FOR THE VANCOUVER LOG SALVAGE DISTRICT

- (b) during the previous 5 years, the person has had a permit canceled or was found guilty of an offence under
 - (i) section 339 of the Criminal Code, or
 - (ii) section 334, 343 or 463 of the Criminal Code by reason of a theft set out in section 322 of the Criminal Code.

[am. B.C. Regs. 299/81, s. 9; 109/93, s. 8; 90/2006, s. 6; 133/2011, Sch. s. 20; 76/2022, s. 7.]

Log identification hammers

- 16 (1) On application by a permittee and on receipt of a fee determined by the minister, the minister shall issue to a permittee a log salvage identification hammer that has embossed on it the permittee's log salvage identification mark.
 - (2) At the time of salvage or, if prevented by weather or sea conditions, as soon as reaching shelter, a permittee shall
 - (a) mark each log salvaged by the permittee that is not contained in a log boom by making a clear and visible imprint with the permittee's log salvage identification hammer on one end of the log at a location where the mark will be clearly visible when the log is floating, and
 - (b) mark each log boom salvaged by the permittee by making a clear and visible imprint with the permittee's log salvage identification hammer on one end of at least 2 logs in the log boom in locations where the mark will be clearly visible,

unless the minister directs otherwise.

- (3) If a permittee loses the permittee's log salvage identification hammer the permittee shall
 - (a) immediately notify the minister, and
 - (b) remit to the minister the fee for a new hammer,

and pending receipt of a new hammer, the permittee shall mark, in the manner set out in subsection (2), any log or any log boom the permittee salvages by fixing the permittee's log salvage identification mark on it clearly and conspicuously with crayon or spray paint.

- (4) A permittee or the permittee's helper shall not
 - (a) mutilate, obliterate or make difficult to distinguish a timber mark, marine log brand or log salvage identification mark on a log,
 - (b) use a log salvage identification hammer that, through damage or faulty manufacture, fails to make a clear and visible imprint of the permittee's log salvage identification mark,
 - (c) mark any log that is not salvaged by the permittee, or
 - (d) except with the written consent of the minister and on terms specified by the minister.
 - (i) trim a salvaged log,

- (ii) cut a salvaged log into 2 or more pieces, or
- (iii) cut the roots or top from a salvaged log.
- (5) A permittee shall not allow any person except the permittee's helper to use or to have in the permittee's possession the permittee's log salvage identification hammer.
- (6) Where a person is in possession of a log salvage hammer and the person is not the permittee to whom it was issued nor that permittee's helper, the person shall, on demand made by a forest officer or peace officer, surrender the hammer to the officer.

[am. B.C. Regs. 133/2011, Sch. s. 21; 237/2013, App. 1, ss. 2 and 3; 76/2022, ss. 6 to 8.]

Removal from water

A permittee must not remove a salvage log from water or deliver a salvage log by land unless the minister agrees to the removal or delivery and prior arrangements have been made with the licensee under the Act for the log to be scaled.

[en. B.C. Reg. 109/93, s. 9; am. B.C. Reg. 133/2011, Sch. s. 22.]

Daylight hours

- 18 (1) A permittee must only carry on log salvage operations during the period from one half hour after sunrise until one half hour before sunset in the following areas unless otherwise authorized by the minister:
 - (a) that part of Vancouver Harbour lying east of a straight line from the most westerly point on the Vancouver Wharves Ltd. dock to Brockton Point lighthouse;
 - (b) that part of the Fraser River, its tributaries, and lakes attached thereto, in the Vancouver Log Salvage District upriver from a line drawn from a point one kilometre south of Sandheads Light northerly to the western extremity of the North Arm jetty thence to the western extremity of Point Grey;
 - (c) that part of Howe Sound lying north of a straight line from Soames Point, on the west shore, to the northern tip of Bowyer Island to Irby Point, the southern tip of Anvil Island, thence northerly through the eastern tip of Defence Island to the west shore of Howe Sound;
 - (d) that part of Howe Sound inside the limits of Squamish Harbour;
 - (e) within 1 km of any area where log salvaging is prohibited under section 14 (a) of this regulation.
 - (2) Subsection (1) does not apply to
 - (a) the booming of salvaged logs in a permittee's usual booming grounds, or
 - (b) the towing of a salvaged log boom if the licensee has given the permittee a written instruction which the permittee retains in the permittee's possession

VANCOUVER LOG SALVAGE DISTRICT

stating the description of the boom and the place to which it is to be delivered.

[en. B.C. Reg. 109/93, s. 9; am. B.C. Regs. 133/2011, Sch. s. 22; 76/2022, s. 4.]

Seizure

- 19 (1) The minister or a peace officer may seize a log or a log boom that is in the possession of any person who contravenes this regulation or section 124 or 126 of the Act.
 - (2) Where a salvaged log is seized by the Crown under subsection (1), the minister
 - (a) release the log from seizure to any person on the terms and conditions the minister considers fit, or
 - (b) dispose of the log by public auction or private sale.
 - (3) Where a log is disposed of under this section, the money realized, after deducting the costs of seizure, storage and sale, shall be paid into the consolidated revenue fund.

[am. B.C. Regs. 299/81, s. 11; 133/2011, Sch. s. 23.]

Licence and permit fees

- 20 (1) For the purposes of section 123 (3) of the Act, the licence fee
 - (a) for issuance of a licence is \$750, and
 - (b) for renewal of a licence is \$250 per year.
 - (2) An applicant shall pay to the Crown for issuance of a permit under section 124 of the Act a permit fee of \$250 per year.

[en. B.C. Reg. 109/93, s. 10.]

Offence

21 A person who contravenes this regulation commits an offence.

Copyright © 2023, Province of British Columbia